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Board of Directors Report 2016

Bear Shareholders,
| am pleased to present o you the 2016 Annual Report that includes the Chaimnan's Report, the Auditor's Report, and the

Audited Financial Position as of 3171272016,

Dear Shareholders,

The il prices reduction in the world continued to cast its negative effects on all the GCC Countries, and indeed deepened fur-
ther. This has k=d to drastic saving messures adopted by the Bahrain Government to an extent never seen before. Introducing
riew taxes, increasing cost of utilites, suspending subsidies and far resching cost cutting exercises are some of these measures.
Obwiousty this has refiected negatively on all the economécal activities and the Hotel industry is at the forefront of these.

On the other hand, the increase in the number of new Hotels opened this year in Bahrain has triggered guite a fierce competition
that resulted in decreasing the Average Foom Rate from BOT0/- to BDEDY-, and most often even less than this. The highlights
of 2016 Result can be summed up as follows:

- Bales of the Hotel and Fumished Apartments reduced by 13% compared to [ast year.
- The Diplomat Office Building revenue increased by T%

- Company total Sale decreased by 11%

- Company net profit decreased by T

- Eamings per Share decreased by 7%

0On the brighter side, | am pleased to inform you that the Company has approved an ambitious project for the entire Hotel Lobby
and Rooms Refurbéshrnent. The interior design works have successfully been accomplished and the whole Project has been
submitted for general tender towards the end of 20016, and the Project will be implemented during this year 2017 .

The Board is vigorously following up with the Executive Management for the strict and vigilant adherence of the Corporate Gov-
ermancs niles and guidelimes. The Board i indeed quite satisfied with Conporate Govemance compliance.

Cear Shareholders,
Your Board of Derectors, having discussed the audited Financial Staternents for the year 2016, submits the following recom-
mendations for endorsement by the Ordinary General Assermbly with regand to the year 2016 profit;

1y to declare and pay a Cash Dividend to the Shareholders of 12% of the Share Capital i.e. B0.1,310,097)-, amounting
to 12 Fils per share.

2} to approve BOATS, 000y as Derectors rernuneration already charged as an expense in the Income Statement.

3y to approve BOS0, 000/ for the support of Mational Institutions and Charity SAccourts already charged 25 an expense in
the Income Statement.

4y to transfer the balance of the profit of B02, 202,536/ to the Retained Eamings Account

Finally, | would like to express personally and on behalf of the Board and the Shareholders, my thanks and appreciation o
His Majesty The Wing - Shaikh Hamad bin lsa Al Bhalifa, His Royal Highness The Prirme Minister - Prince Ehalifa bin Salman Al
Bhaifa, and His Royal Highness The Crown Prince, the first Deputy Prime Minister and Commander-in-Chief of the Bahrain De-
fence Force - Prince Salman bin Hamad Al Bhalifa, for their support and assistance to the Company. | would also e to thank
all the officials at Government Ministries, Organisations and esteemed custormers for their cortinuous backing to us. Special
tribute must be paid to all the Company’s employees led by the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. A Rahman Meorshed, the Exscutive
Managers and staff of the Diplomat Radisson Blu Hotel, Residence & Spa, and the Diplomat Office Tower Building employees
for their sincere efforts in sendng the Company.

With the Grace of God,

Oy ——

Faisal Ahmed Al Zayani Manama
Chiairman 16.02.2017
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Independent Auditors' Report To The Shareholders

Report on the financial statements

Opinion

We nave audited the accompanying financisl statements of Mational Hotels Company B.5.C. (“the Company”), which comgrise the
staternent of financial position as &t 31 Decemnber 2016, and the statements of prafit or loss, other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash fiows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, inchuding a surmimary of significant accounting
palicies.

i our opinizn, the sccompanying financial statements present fairly, i all material respects, the financial position of the Company
as at 51 December 2016, and its financiad performance and its cash fiows for the year then ended in acconrdance with Internationad
Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs).

Basis for opinion

We consucted our audit in accordance with Imemational Standards on Auditing [154s). Dur responsitéities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independant of
the Company in accondance with the International Ethics Standards Boand for Accpuntants” Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
{IESB& Code), and we have fulfliad our other ethics! responsibities in accondance with the IESBA Code. We Delieve that the audit
evidence we have ootained & sufMckent and appropriate to provide & basis for our oginion.

Hey andit matters

Fzy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial state-
rrents fior the year ended 31 December 2006, These matters were aidressed i the context of our audit of the fnancial statements
as & whole, and i formreng our opinion therescn, and we do not provide 3 separate opinéon on these matiers. For each matter below,
our description of how our sudit addressed the matter is provided in that contest.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsiilities for the &udt of the Financial Statements section of our
report, including in refation to these matters.  Accordingly, our 3udit mciuded the perfiorrmance of procedures designed 1o respond o
our assessment of the risks of matenial misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures perfomned to addness the miatiers below, provide the basis for cur sudit opinion on the accompanying financizl statements.

Valuation of freehold land carried at revalwed amoant
Refer to Mote 7 to the financial statements

Key audit matter / risk How the key audit matier was addressed
in the audit
The freehald land represents 3 significant part of the total assets | Our procadures in relation to the 15 value assessment of free-

(36%) of the Company and is accounted for 8t its fair value | hold land included, amond others:
of BD 31,774.218 as of 31 December 2016, The valuations

were camied out Dy independent extemal appraiser engaged by ® Eyalustion of the independent extemal appraiser's

the Company As 3 result of valuation, a revaluation koss of BOD ochjectivity, mdependence and expertise; and
4,397,432 has been recorded in the statement of comprenensive

income to mﬂ'ﬂﬂﬂm‘iﬂg amount of the freshold land of BD ® lssessment of the I"I'E'r.rml:l":lﬁr. HEjrﬂlﬂPﬁl:ll'IE-m
36,171.650 to its fair vales. methods wsed by management and external appraiser in

e waluITon process.
Waluation of freenold land was significant to our audit due to its
magnitude and complexity and it is highly dependent on a range | We also evaluated the appropristeness of the disclosures relating
of estenates that require significant managerment juddment as | to the assumpticns and sensitiity of such assumptions in Note 7
disciosed in Mote 5 o the financial statermnents. 0 the financial statemsants.
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Independent Auditors' Report To The Shareholders

Report on the financial statements (Continwe)
Other information included in the Company's 2016 annual report

Orther information consists of the information included i the Company’s 2016 Annual Report, other than the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon. The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Prior to the date of this auditors” regort, we
oiftained the Chairman's Report which forms part of the annual report, and the remaining sections of the annual repoet are expected
1o be made available 1o us after that date.

O opinion on the fnancial staternemts does not cover the other mformation and we do not express any Torm of S55UraNGce ConCIESIoN
thereon.

In connection with our audt of the fnancial statemants, ow responsitdity is to read the other informiation dentifled above when it
becomes avalable and, in doing so, consider whether the ather information is materally nconsistent with the financial statements or
our knoededge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, basad on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of the auditor's report, we conclude that
there is 3 matenial misstaternent of this other mfcernation, we ane required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements

The Boand of Directons is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs and
for swch internal control as the Board of Directors determnines is necessany to enable the preparation of financial staternents that are
free from materizl misstatement, whether duse to fraud or eror.

In preparing the fmancial statements, the Board of Directors is responsitls for assessing the Company's ability to continue 35 3 going
concem, disclosing, &s applcadle, mathers related to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting uniess the Boand
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Cormpany or to cease operations, or has no reaistc shemative but to do so.

Aunditor's responsibilities for the andit of the fimancial statements

O oijectives are 1o obtain reascnable essurance about whather the financial staternents as & whoke are free from matesal misstate-
miant, whather gue to fraud or emor, and 10 isswe an auditor's report that ncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 3 high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in atcomance with 1245 will always detect 3 matenal misstaterment when it
exists_ Misstataments can arise from fraud of emror and are conssdered material i, individually or in the sggregate, they could reason-
aily b= expected to infiuence the economic decisions of users @ken on the basis of thess financial statements.

A5 part of an audit in accondance with 1545, we exarcise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
it We also:

®  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or emor, design
and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks, and cbtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriste o
provide & basis for cur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for
one resulting from emor, a5 fraud may invobve collusion, forgery, imentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intemal contral.

&  (Obtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant to the audit in order to design sudit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s intemnal
control.

® Baluate the appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Bosed of Directors.
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Independent Auditors' Report To The Shareholders

Report on the Aundit of the Financial Statements (comtinsed)
Awditor's responsibilities for the awdit of the finandcal statements (comntineed)

# Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors” use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtmined, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Cornpany’s shility to continue a5 a going concam. If we conclude that & misteris] uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in owr suditor’s report to the related discloswes in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence chiainad
up to the date of our suditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company’s to cesse to
continue as @ Ecing ConGefTL.

®  Bualuste the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, mcluding the discloswnes, and
whether the financisl statements represent the undedying transsctions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presantation.

®  (Ohbisin sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinicen.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, armmong other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including arny significant deficiencias in imemal control that we idertify during our sudit.

We also prowide the Board of Dinectors with 3 statement that we have cormplied with relevant ethical requirernents regarding indepen-
dence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to besr on our indepen-
dence, and whare applicabie, related safeguarnds.

Frorm the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determing those matters that were of most signiflcance in the audit
of the inancisl statements of the cumrent pericd and are thersfore the kKey audit matters. We describe these mathers in our auditor's
report unless |zw or regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, n exiremely rare circumsiances, we determine
that 3 matter should not e communicatad in our report Decawse the adverse conseguentas of going 5o would ressonadly be expected
o outeeigh the pubhc mterest benefiis of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We report that
al as required by the Bshrain Commercial Companies Law:
i. the Comgany has maintained proper accounting records and the financial stEternents are in agreement therewith;
ii. the financia! information contained in the Chairman's Report is consistent with the financial staternents; and
iii. satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by Management in response to all our requests;
and
Bl we are not aware of any viclstions of the Bahrain Commersial Companiss Law, the Central Bank of Bahrain {C3E} Ruls
Book {applicable provisions of Volume &) and CEE directives, eeulations and associated resolutions, niles and proce
dures of the Bshrain Bowrse or the terms of the Company’s memorandum and articles of associstion during the year
ended 31 December 2016 that might have had a matenal adverse effect on the business of the Company or on its
financial position
The partner in charge of the audit reswling in this independent auditor's report i Nader Rahimi.

16 Febnuary 2017
Manama, Kingdom of Sahrain
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Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2016 2015

Mot BD BD
ASSETS
Mon-current aaseis
Property, plant and equipment 7 70,818,306 75518063
Investment in an associate 8 7,971,083 6,872,407
Awalable-for-sale investments 9 4,857,136 2,995,215
Total non-cument assets 83,248,617 &6 GE5 655
Cagrent assets
Ivwentories 10 81,203 75,057
Held-for-trading investments 11 40,926 47931
Trade and other receivables 12 378,082 BAT 482
Bank balances and cash 13 4,815,631 £, 252 055
Total cament assets 3,316,852 7,017 525
TOTAL ASSETS 88,763,468 93,703,210
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 14 11,025,000 11,025,000
Treasury shares 15 (24,726} (94, T2E)
Statutory reserve 16 L.512. 500 5.512 500
General resene 17 2,190,079 2.190,079
Revaluation resere 18 31,206,911 35,604 343
Avadable-for-sale investments resemve 2,273,944 2,426,752
Retained eamings Z9,282 547 27,079,711
Proposed dividend 13 1,310,097 1,310,097
Total equity 82,706,352 85 053 756
Mon-current [iabilities
Employees’ end of senice benefits 20 415,376 362,320
Term loan 21 1,243,215 3 729,651
Total non-cament liabilities 1,658,591 4091971
Camrent [iabilities
Trade and other payables 22 1,912,090 2,071,047
Current portion of term loan 21 2,486,436 2 486,436
Total cument liabilities 4,398,526 4 55T 483
Total Gabilities 6,057,117 8,649 454
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 88,763,469 93 703,210

Moy
Faisal Ahmed Al Zzavani Ayad Abdulla Ahmed Al Sumait

Chiairman Vice Chairman and Managing Director
Th Es 1 to 36 form ﬂ'IEEE financial statments

= —Hll“.,__--"-:"‘_ -
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ANNUAL REPORT 2016
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016

20146 15
Note BD BD
Gross operating revenue 23 8,806,010 9,886,914
Gross operating costs 24 (4,980,087) (5,2033827)
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT 3,816,423 4,683,532
MNet imestment incoms:
Share of profit from an associate 8 2,113,407 1628772
Dividend income 168,015 157 809
Interest income 80,346 27821
MNet changes i cumulative fair valus of 005) 6,196]
held-for-trading imestments = f
2,360,763 1,808 206
Miscellaneous income 25 2448 281 834
Dlepreciation T (2,023 .004) (1584523
General and administration expenses (643,733) (658, 256)
Financial charges (204,000) (265,876)
Loss on write-off of property, Plant & equipment (36,380) {101,234
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 3,512,933 3,773,223
Basic and dduted eamings per share (i fils) 27 32 a5
Dividend per share (in fils) 19 (a) 12 o
TIIH Y "
?—éﬁﬁl}iﬁ L

Faisal Ahmed Al Zayani Byad Abdulla Ahmed Al Bumnait
Chairman Vice Chairman and Mansging Director

The attached notes 1 to 35 form part of these financial statments

:-.-—. ..,_"—rw';m 1_ '—.‘\.‘_ﬁ-
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016

2016 W5

Mote BD i [B]
Profit for the year 3,512,933 3,773,223
Other comprehensive imooume
Other comprehensive income 1o be reclassified to
profit or loss in subseguent peniods:
Met movernent in fair values of available
for sale imestments during the year 9 (138,078) 313,785
Share in associate’s cumulative changes in fair values B (14, 728) 15150
Net other comprehensive (Loss) income to be reclasaified to
profit or loes in subssquent periods: (152,808} 328,935
Cther comprehensive loss not 10 be reclassified 1o
profit or loss in subseguent peniods: 7. 18 (4,397,432) -
Revaluation of freehold land
Other comprehensive [Loes) income for the year {4, 250,2490) 328,935
Total comprehensive [Loss) imcome for the year (L0327, 307) 4102 158

"

Faizal Ahmed Al Zayani Ayad Abdulla Ahmed Al Sumait
Chairman Vice Chairman and Managing Director

The attached notes 1 to 36 form part of these financial statments
- ] .
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015

Mote BD BD
OPERATING ACTIWITIES
Prafit for the year 3,212,833 3,773,223
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 7 2,023,004 1,984 923
‘Winite—off of property, plant and eguipment T 36,300 104,234
Gain on disposals of property, plant and eguipment = (1.220)
Share of profit from an associate B (2,113, 407) (LE62B,772)
Met change in the fair value of held-for-trading investments 2,005 6,136
‘Write back of provision for doubtful receivables 12 (16,8:38) (16, 773)
Pravizion for employess” end of senice benefits o0 78,560 61,845
Diividend income {1&9,S) (157 809
Interest income (80,346) (27.81)
Dperating profit before working capital changes 3.2T2,465 4,095,087
‘Working capital changes:
Inventories (8.146]) (9.370)
Trade and other receivables 135,583 {13,549
Trade and other payables 151,007 230,845
Cash flows from Operations 3,542,808 4,293,013
Directors’ remuneration paid 26 (L, MDY {172,000
Ermployees” end of semice benefits paid 20 (23,304) (29,636)
Charitable contributions peid 22 {24,000) (56,200
Net cash flows from operating activities 3,288,905 4,035 477
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (237,280) (326,381)
Purchase of avalable-for-sale investment o {2, ey, 0N} -
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment - 3,000
Dividends received from an associate B 1,400,000 1,000, 000
Other dividends recenved 168,015 157,809
Interest received 30,802 27 8M
Met cash flows (used in) from investing activities 848, TE3) 862,249
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid 19 (a} (1,310,087} {1.039,759)
Repsyment of term loan 21 (2,486,436) (2,486,436)
MWet cash flows used in financing activities (3, 798,333) (3,526, 195)
[DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,458,501} 1371231
Cagh and cash equivalents at 1 January 6,030,512 4,669,281
CASH AND CASH ECUIVALENTS AT 21 DECEMBER 13 4,581,621 6,040,512

Non-cash itemss:

(i} Lishdities towards scquisition of property, plant and equipment to the exdent of BD 2,390 (2015: BD 104,821) with a net
decrease of BD 99,431 duning the year (2015:; BD 86, 494) were not settled as of the date of statement of financial posi-
tion.

(i) Unclaimed dividends pertaining to prior years amounting to B0 234,010 {2015 BD 211 543) [note 15] has been excluded
from the movernent of trade and other payables.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2016

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For The Year Ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

MNaticnal Hotels Company B.5.C. (the "Company™) is a public joint stock company incorporated in the Kingdom of Bahrain and
registered with the Ministry of Industry, Commernce and Toursm under commenzial registration (CR) number 1665, The sddress
of the registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 5243, Building 59, Road 1701, Bleck 317, Diplomatic Area, Mngdom of
Bahrain. The Compsany owns the Diplomat Radisson BLU Hotel (the *Hotel), which is managed by Rezidor Hotel Group (“Re-
Zdor”) under a 15 year management agreement dated 20 July 2000, In 2007, the Company commenced the operations of
its sensiced apariments, which are slso managed by Rezidor under a 12 year management agreement dated & May 2003, In
2012, the Company commenced the operations of its office towers, which are managed by the Company directly. In 2015,
the management agreement of the Hotel and sendiced apartments was amended to extend the management perod wp to 31
Decembsr 2030.

The Company operates salely in the Kimgdom of Bahrain.
Associate
The Compary has 5 33.33% interest in African & Eastern (Bahrain) WILL. (2015: 33.33%).

The financial statemeants were authorsed for issue in acconrdance with 3 resolution of the Board of Directors on 16 Febmary
2017,

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued
by the Intemational Accournting Standards Board (IASE) and in conformity with the Bahrin Commercial Companies Law, ap-
plicable reguirerments of the Central Bank of Bahrain Rule Book (applicable provisions of Volurme &) and rules and procedures
of the Bahrain Bourse.

The financial statements are prepared wunder the historcal cost comeention modified to include the measurement at f&ir value
of available-for-sale imestments, held-for-trading investments and the revaluation of freehold land.

The financial statements have been presented in Bahraini Dinars (BD), which is the functional currency of the Company.

4 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Mew and amended standards and interpretations effective as of 1 Janoary 2016

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the following LASE's new
and amended standards and interpretations which are effective as of 1 lanuary 2016, The adoption of these standards and
imterpretations did not have any effect on the Company's financial position, finsncial performance or disclosures.

IFRS 14 -  Regulstory Deferal Accounts: Guidance on presentation and discloswes; Annual Improvements 2000-2012

IFRS 11 -  Joint Arrangements (&mendments): Accounting for Acquisition of Interests - Guidance on acquisition of an
irterest in a joint operation;

45 16 & -  Propery, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (Amendmenis): Clanfication of acceptable methods of

A5 38 depreciation and amortisation

145 16 & -  Property, Plant and Equiprment and Agriculture (Amenderments): Guidance on the accounting reguirements of

A5 41 plant-ased bearer biologics! assets;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
New and amended standards and interpretations (Continued)

s 27 -

|msi1 -

IFRS 10, -

IFRS 12 &
IAS 2B

Separate Financial Statements (Amendments): Guidance on eguity method for mwestrments in subsidiaries,
joint ventures and associates;

Desciosure Initiative: Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments): Clarification on materiality
requirernents and presentation and disclosures; and

Consolidated Financial Statements, Disclosure of Interest in other Entities and Investments in Associates
and loint Ventures (Amendments): The amendments sddress issues that have ansen in spplying the
investment entiies exception under IFRS 10,

Annual Improvements 2012.2014 Cycle

FRSS5 -
IRS7T -

IAS 19 -
AS 34 -

Mom-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operstions: Guidance on changing the disposal methods;
Financial Instruments: Disclosures {(Amendment): Guidance on servicing contracts and applicability of the
offsetting disclosures to condensed interim financial statements;

Employee Benefits (Amendmenth: Clarfication on the market depth of high guality corporate bonds; and
Interim Financial Reporting (Amendment): Guidance on interim disclosures and other information.

4 SUNMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities i the statement of financial position based on cument’non-current classhcation.
Pnasetlspresented as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the nommal operating oycle;

Held primarily for the punpose of trading:

Expected to be realised within twehe months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash eguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelee
manths after the reporting perod.

48 other assets are classified as non-curnent.

A Ild:irl;' s prE-ErTI:Ed &5 cument wien:;

It is expected to be settled in the nomal cperating cycle;
It is held primasily for the purpose of trading:
It is due to be settlad within twehe months sfter the reporting period: or
Thers is no unconditional right to defer the settdement of the [isbdity for at least twehe maonths after

the reporting pamicd.

The Company classifies all other liakilites as mon-current.
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Vi SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, is reconded at cost less accumulsted depreciation and any mmpasirment in value.
Land is carried at revalusd amounts. Land and capital work-in-progress ane not depreciated.

Revalustion of land is normally camied out every three years. Any net surplus arising on revaluation is credited 1o a evaluation
reserve @nd any decrease resulting from subseguent revalustions is charged directly against any related revaluation suplus
held in respect of that same asset and the remaining portion charged as an expense. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
revalued land, the additional revalustion surplus is transfemred to retained eamings.

Deprecistion is calculated on & straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the ascets as follows:

- Buildings 25 to 40 years
- Improvernents to buildings: 510 10 years
- Furniture, fitures and equipment Lto T years

- Plant and machinery 4 o 20 years

The camying values of property, plant and eguipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in crcumstances
indicate the camying value may not be recoverable. f any such indication exists and where the camying values excesd the es-
timated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to thelr recoverable amount, being the higher of thesr fair value less
costs to sell and their value in use.

The Company assesses its mparment calculation after reviewing detsiled budgests and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for esch of the Cormpany’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and
forecast calculations are generally covering a pericd of one year. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the first year.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and eguipment that is accounted for separately is
capitalsed and the camying amount of the component that is replaced is watten off. Cther subsequent expenditure is capital-
ised only when it increases the future economic benefits of the related item of property, plant and eguipment. AR other expen-
diture is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as the expenss is mcurmed.

The assets’ residusl valuss, usefu lves and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, it appropriate. An iterm of property, planmt and equipment is derecognised wpon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or lpss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amounts of the assets) is included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Imvestment in an associate
An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant infleence is the power to participats in
the financial and operating poficy decisions of the imestee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The considerstions made i determining significant influence are similar to those necessany to determine comtrol over
subsidiaries.

The Compary's investrment in its associate B accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initislly recognised at cost. The camrying amount of the imestment
is adjusted to recognise changes in the Company's share of net assets of the associate since the scquisition date. Goodwill
relating to the associste is ncluded in the carrying amount of the iwestment and is neither amortised nor individusly tested
for impairmment.
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4 SUNMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimued)
Investment in an associate (continued)

The staternent of profit or loss reflects the share of the results of operations of the associste. Any change in other comprehensive
incarne (DC1) of this investee is presented as part of the Company’s OC1. Where there has been a change recognised directly in
equity of the sssaciate, the Company recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from fransactions between the Company and the associate ars
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate.

The sggregate of the Company's share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the statement of profit or
loss cutside operstng profit and represents profit or loss for the year and mon controlling interests in the subsidisnes of the
associate.

The financial statements of the associste sre prepared for the same reporting period as the Company. Where nececsary,
adjustments sre made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company.

After application of the equity method, the Company detemmnines whether it is necessary to recognise an sdditional impsinmeant
loss on the Company’s investment in associate. The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any ohjectve
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company caloulates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and s camying value and recognises the
amount in the 'share of profit of an associate’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Company measuwnes and recognises any retaining imeestrnent at its fair
value. Any difference betweesn the camying amount of the asscciate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the
retained imestment and procesds from disposal is recognised in profit or koss.

Inventornes

Inventones of food and beverage are stated at the kower of cost and net realisable value. Imentories of maintenance stores are
stated st cost less provision for obsolescence. Costs are those expenses incured in bninging imventonies to their present lacation
and condition and are determined cn a first-in-first-out basis.

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that ghves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financia! liabibty or eguity instrument
of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of [AS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss, loans and
recenables or available-for-sale financial assets. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at inital
recognition.

Financial assets are recoghised initially at fair value plus, in the case of mwestments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributabde fransaction costs.

Purchaszes or sales of financial assets that reguire delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace (regulsr way purchases) are recognised on the trade date, ie., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

The Company's financial assets nclude bank balances and cash, term deposits, cer@in portion of trade and other receivables,
available-for-sale imestrments and held-for-trading investrments.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Sobsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assefs at fair valve through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair vafue through profit or loss includes financial assets held for trading and designated upon nitial recogni-
tion at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. This category includes demvative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedg@ing instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39, Dervatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are slso classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Finan-
cial assets at fair value through profit and koss are camied in the staterment of financial position at fair value with gains or losses
recognised in the statement of profit or loss

The Company evaluates its financial assets held for trading, other than derfvatives, 1o determine whether the imterntion to sell
them in the near termmn is stll appropniste. When the Company is unable to trade these financial assets dus to inactive markets
and management’s intention to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the Company may elect to reclassify
these financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification to loans and receivables, avallable-for-sale or held to maturity
depends on the nature of the asset. This evaluation does not affect any financis! assets designated at fair value through profit
or koss using the fair value option at designation,

Loans and receivables.

Loans and receiables are non-dervative financial assets with fieed or determinable payrnents that are not guoted i an active
rarket. Swch financis! assets are camied a3t amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are rec-
ognised in the staterment of profit or boss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process. Bad debis ane wiitten off in the statement of profit or loss when identified.

This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to note 12,

Available-for-sale financial assets

Avyailable-for-sale financisl assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated a5 available-for-sale or are not clas-
sified as boans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. After initisl measwrement, svailable-for-sale financisl assets
are subsequently measurad at fair valus (unless it s mpractical to determine the fair value), with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income wntil the investment is derecognised, st which time the cumulatve gain or loss
recorded in equity is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or determined to be impaired, at which time the curmnulative
loss recorded in equity is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Comparny evalustes its availalble-for-sale financial assets to determine whether the ability and intention to sell them in the
near term i still sppropriate. When the Company is unable to trede these financsal assets due to inactive markets and manage-
ment’s irntertion to do so significantly changes in the foreseesble future, the Company may elect to reclassify these financial
assets in rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables s permitted when the financial assets meet the defini-
tion of lzans and receivabies and the Company has the intent and abdity ©o hold these assets for the foreseeable future or until
ratunty. Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity has the abdity and intention o hold
the financial asset accondingly.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised as other comprehensive income  is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining Be of the imestment wsing the
effective interest rate. Any difference beteeen the new amaortised cost and the expected cash flows & aslso amortised over the
remaining Bfe of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired. then the
armount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cach flows, ecash and cash eguivalents consist of cash on hand, bank balances and short-
term deposits with an original maturty of three months or less, net of restricted cash.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assats

The Company assesses at each date of statement of financial positon whether there is any ohjective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemsad to be Impsired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated futwre cash fiows of the financisl asset
or the group of financial assets that can be relisbly estimated. Bvidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experencing significant financial dfficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principad payments, the
protability that they will enter banlknuptoy or other financial reordanisation and where obsenable data indicates that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changdes in armears or economic conditions that comrelate with
defzulis.

Am assessment is made at each date of statement of financial position to detemmine whether there is objectve evidence that a
gpecific financial asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impaiment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Impaiment is detesmined as follows:

al For assets camied at fair value, impaimment is the dfference betwesn cost and fair value, less any impsinmsant
loss previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss;

] For assets cammied at cost, impaiment s the difference between camying value and the present value of fuburs
cash flows discounted at the cument market rate of retum for 3 similar financis! asset;

cl For assets camied &t amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and the present

value of future cash flows discounted at the onginal effective interest rate.
Financial iabiliies
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabikties are classified, at initial recognition, as financial Eskilities at fair value thecugh profit or boss, loans and bor-
rowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Financial liabilities are recognised intially at fair value and in the case of loans and bomrowings, directly sttnibutable transaction
COsts,

The Compary's financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables and term loan.
Trade and other payables

Lizhilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the
future for gobds or services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing boans and borrowings are subsequently measured st amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the staternent of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate (EIR) methed amortisation process.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (cowtinmed)

Amnortised cost is calculsted by taking into sccownt any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and coste that are an
imegral psrt of the EIR.

Borrowing costs directhy stinbutable fo the scquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substan-
tial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets_ All other
bomowing costs are expensad in the period they ocour.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing term loan. For more information refer note 21.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financisd assets and financial liabfties are offset and the net amount reported in the staternent of financial position if, and only
if, there is & currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simulaneously.

Amortised cost of financial instruments

Amortised cost is computed using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment and pencipal repayment or
reduction. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and inchudes transaction costs and fees
that are an integral part of the effective nterest rate.

Derecognition of financial instruments
A financisl asset {or, whene sppicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
- the Company has transfered its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an cbligation to
pay the recened cash fiows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either {a} the Company has transfermed substantisly all the risks and rewsrds of the ssset, or {b) the
Company has neither transferred nor re@ined substantislly 3l the rsks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
A fimancial lisbdity is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would b= received to sell an asset or paid to ransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measwrement is based on the presumption that the transaction o
sell the asset or transfer the lability takes place either:

aj In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
b In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous markst for the asset or Bability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Compary.

The fair value of an asset or a Eshility is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into scoount 3 market participant’s ability to generate economic ben-
efits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |[contimued)
Fair valme measurement (continued)

The Cornpany wses valuation technigues that are appropeiate in the circemstanees and fior which sufficient dats are available to
measure fair value, madimising the use of refavant cheersable mputs and minimising the use of uncbserable inputs.

Al zseets and lisbdities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the far
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level nput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
wiioke:

al Lewved 1 - Quoted (unadpested) market prices i active markets for identical assets or labilities;

bj Lewed 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly obsersable; and

cl Levad 3 - Valustion technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobsenahle.

For assets and liabilites that are recognised in the financial statements on & recuming basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have cccumed between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as 3 whods) at the end of each reporting peicd.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liskdties on the basis of the na-
ture, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabifty and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained shove.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation and a reliable esti-
mate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
wirwally certain. The expense refsting to any provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss et of any resmbursemsanit.
If the effect of the tme value of money is matensl, provisions are discounted using a curment pre-Ex rAte that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liabilite. Where discounting is used, the increase in the prosision due to the passage of
time is recognised a5 a finance cost.

Employees' end of service benefits
The Company provides for end of senice benefits to its expatriate employees in accordance with the Bahrsin Labour Law. The

entilernent to these benefits is based wpon the employees’ final salanes and length of senvice. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

The Company makes contributions to the Socis! Insurance Organisation scheme for its national employess calculsted as a

percentage of the employses’ salafes. The Compsny's obligations are limited to these contributions, which are expensad when
due.

Treasury shares

Chweny eqpuity instruments that ane reacquired (tressury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. Mo gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, ssue or cancellation of the Company's own eguity nstruments. Any differ-
ence beteeen the camying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in share premeum.
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4 SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be relisbly messured, regardless of when the payment is being mads.

Revenue i massured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivabie @king into acoount any contrechually defined
terms of payment, and represents amounts receivable for goods and senices provided in the normnal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related levies. The Company assesses its revenue against specific critena in order to determine if it is acting
&s a principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting a5 a principal in all of its revenue amrangerments since it is
the primary obigor in all the revenue amrangerments, has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit nsks. The following specific
recognition critenis must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Revenne from service and sale of goods

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised when services ame performed, provided that the amount can be measured
reliably. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership, which gener-
ally coincides with the tme when the goods are delivered to customers and tide has passed.

Interest income

Interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the sxpected life of the financial instrurnent or a shorter pencd, where sppropriste, @
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liakikty. Interest income is included in the staterment of profit or loss.

Dividend i
Dividend income is recognised when the Company's night to receive the payment is established.

Forei N
Transactions in foreign curmmencies are recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of ex-
change ruling at the statement of financial position date. All differences are @ken to the statement of profit or boss.

MNon-monetarny items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
as at the dates of the initial ransactions. Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Translation gains or losses on non-rmonetany availsble-for-sale imestments canmed at fair value are ncluded in equity as part of
the fair valus adjustment on available-for-safe investments. Transkstion gains or losses on non-moneEry trading imestments
cammied at fair value are included in the statement of profit or loss as part of the net change in the value of held-for-trading
imestments.

5 SIGNIFICGANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparastion of the Company’s financial statements requires management to makes judgements, estimates and assurnp-
tione that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and Bsbilities, and the sccompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. Uncerzinty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a matenal adustmeant to the camying amount of the assets or liabilites affected in future penicds.




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 wewipidn gl (§aliall ﬂﬁj.u.l’
NATIONAL HOTELS COMPANY®msc

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2016

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Going concern

The Board of Directars has made an assessment of its akility to continue as a going concemn and is satisfied that it has the
resources 90 continue in business for the foresesable future. Furthermore, the Board of Directors is not aware of any matenal
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability 1o continue as a going concem. Therefore, the consolidatad
financial statements contines to be prepared on the going concemn basis.

Classification of investments
Management decides upon acoqusition of an investment whether it should be classfied as held-for-trading investrment or
available-for-sale.

Yaluation of invesiments

Management uses its best judgerment in determining fair values of the unguoted westmants by reference to recent, matenial
arms’ length transactions imohing thind parties. Monetheless, the actus! amount that will be reslised ina future transaction may
differ from the current estimate of fair value, given the inherent uncemainty swrounding valuations of unquoted imestments. In
determining any imgsirment for the unguoted imestments carried at cost, assumptions have been made regarding the expected
future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be apphed and the expected period of benefit.

Estimates and assumplions

The key assumpticns conceming the fubure and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the statermant of financial posi-
tion date, that have a significant risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilites within
the next financial year are dscussed below.

Impairment of avadable-for-sale equity investments
The Cornpany’s management reviews its investrmeants for impairment. The assezement is camied out when there has besn 3 sig-
nificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost or when objective evidence of impairment exsts.

Impsirment of trade and other receivables

An estimate of the collectible amount of trade and other receiables s made when collection of the full amount & no longer
probable. For individusly significant amounts, this estimation i performed on an indfvidual basis.  Amounts which are not
indevidually significant, buwt which are past dus, are assessed collectvely and a provision applied according to the length of time
past dus, based on histonical recovery rates.

At the reporting date, gross trade accounts receivable were BD 383,448 (2015: B0 520,124) and the provision for dowbrtful
receivables was BOD 21,423 (2015: B0 3B.072). Any difference between the amounts sctually collected in future pericds and
the amourts expected will be recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of invertories

Inventones are held at the lower of cost and net realissbis value. When inventories become old or obsolete, an estimate is made
of their net realisable value. For individually significant amounts this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amountis
which are not individually significant, but which are old or cbsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision appled acconding
o the imentory type and the degree of ageing or cheolescence, based on histoncal selling prices.




it bl g | (G 2 Lisd| l'l_"n.j-lil’ ANNUAL REPORT 2016
MATIOMAL HOTELS COMPANY®BsO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2016

5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUNMPTIONS (continmed)
Impairment of inventones (continued)

At the statement of financial position, gross food and beverage inventonies were B0 63,290 (2015:; BD 56,635) and general
stores of B0 17,905 (2045: BD 18,422), and there was no allowance for old and obsolete inventories (2015 nil). Any differ-
ence betwesn the amounts actuafy realised in future pericds and the amounts expected will be recognised in the statement
of profit or koss.

Revaluation of freehold land

The Compary measures its freehold land at revalued amownts with changes in fair values being recognised in equity. Revalua-
tion of freehold land is normally carried out every three years. The Company engdaged independent valustion specialists to as-
sess the fair value of the freehold land as at 31 Decermber 2016. The assessment of the fair value of the freehold land requires
assumptions such as level of development in the area, current market trends, supply and demand of the property, as well as
location, population and type of neighborhood in the area. The Company has recognised a revaluation koss of BD 4,397,432
(2015: ni} on its freehold land for the year ended 51 December 2016 (note T).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipmemst

The Compary's management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment for calzulating depre-
ciation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. Management
reviews the residual valuss and useful Bves annually and future deprecistion charges wouwld be adjusted where the management
believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates.

Impairnent of property, plant and eguipment

The Company assesses st each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. W any such
indication exists, or when annus! impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largedy independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the canning arnount of an asset exceeds its recover-
able amount, the asset is considered impaired and i weitten down to its recoverable amount In assessing vahue in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the assets. The Company has not recognised any impaimment of propsy,
plant and equipment in its stEtement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 Decembsr 2015,

& STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Standards and interpretations isswed but not yet effective up to the date of ssuance of the Company's financial staterments
are dischosed below. The Company reasonably expects these standards issued to be spplicable at a future date. The Company
imtends to adopt these standards, if applicable, whean they become effective:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Guidance on classification and messurement, impgairment and hedge sccounting (effective for annusl penods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018);

‘IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers:
Guidance on performance obligations, vanable consideration, warmanty obligations, loyalty points program, rendering of sendces
and eguiprment received from customers (effective for annual penicds beginning on or after 1 lanuany 2018);
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‘IFRS 10 & IAS 28 Consolidated Financial Statements and Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures |(Amend-
ments):

Sale or Confribution of Assets between an Investor and its Ascociate or Joint Venture [the IASE has deferred the effective date
of these amendments indefinitely);

‘1A% T Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments):

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in li-
abilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (effective for
annual perods beginneng on or after 1 lanuany 2017). Eadier application ks permitted;

& STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

‘1A% 12 Income Taxes (Amendments):

The amendmeants, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments to 1AS 120, clarify how 0 account
for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured &t fair value (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017). Eardier application is permitted;

‘IFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions:

Classfication and Measwement of Share-based Payment (Amendments) (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008}, Eady application is permitted; and

Leases - Revised guidance on single model accounting for leases (effective for annual pericds beginning on or afer 1 Januwsny
2019, with earlier sdoption permitted if IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” has also been applied).

The Group s curently assessing the financial reporting impact of the above standards when they become effective.
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T PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Improve-  Fumiture,
FREnts fistures Capital
o build- and Plant snd weork-in-
Freehold land Busdings ings equipment machinery  progress Total
BD BD ED BD BD BD ED
Costhaluation:
At 1 Januany 2015 35171650 53,054,950 2645880 4258876 B 204567 43823 104,379,765
Revaluation loss otz 18] 44,397 432) = 5 - - 4,387 432)
Additions - 16,000 3,200 2,560 315474 120915 458,149
Write-affs - = - (654, 946)  (386,353) = 1,051 341)
At 31 December 2016 31 7r4218 53070950 Z2A40080 3595490 B 133646 0 164738 90 38% 141
Cepreciation:
At | January 2016 - i8 133 M7 86424 3,737 279 4BIZHRSZ - 27,561,702
Charge for the year - 13266881 223256 41 976 432 0B - 2,023,994
Relating to write-offs - - - (654,945) (350 005) - {1,044.951)
At 31 December 2016 - ig460 128 1004680 31414308 24004638 2 - 28,370,745
Met camyng amounts:
At31December 2016  3LT74:218 33610841 1557400 482181 3,299,018 164,738 70,818,306
Costfsluation:
Az 1 January 2045 J5,174 650 53,054,969 66,2317 2441371 542,768 2097304  104,774,3TT
Additions = = 124 423 T.57T8 2477 105,400 235 BRT
Transfer = - 1755140 210,108 193,644 (2,158 B00) 2
Wiite-affs - - - (100179 (Z16,320) - (616, 690)
Disposals e - - - (17800 - {17,800
At 31 December 2015 36171650 353054960 2 2 645BB0O £258 876 8 204 567 43823 104379 765
Depreciation:
At 1 lanuary 2015 - 16808873 B57,7B5 36096720 4945826 - 26,108 204
iCharge for the year - 1326574 210,535 42 262 405,448 - 14984 523
Relsting to writs-offs - - - {1,703) (513,702 - (315, 405)
Relating to disposals - - - - (16,020 - {16 020)
At 31 December 2015 1B 133 447 B6B 424 3,737,279 4822 552 - 27561 702
Met carmying amionnts:
At 31 December 2045 36171630 34921522 1777 456 321597 3382013 43 823 76,818 053
Mote:

ajl Freshold land was revalued on 31 December 2016 by three mdependent property valuers. The averags revaluation
ectimate was considered by the Directors, as this was believed to be the best indicator of the fair value. As per the
revaluation, the value of freehold land reduced from BD 36,171,650 as of 31 December 2015 wo BD 31.774.218
as of 31 December 2016 and hence a revaluation loss of BD 4,397 432 has been charged to the revaluation resene
{note 18). The previous revalustion was conducted as at 31 December 20135,

b)

The camying amount of freehold land, if caried at cost, would b= B0 567,307 (2005 BD 567,307).
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8 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

The Company has & 33.33% (2015: 33 353%) interest in African & Eastesn (Bahrain) W.LL, which i incorporated in the King-
dormn of Bahrain and is involved in the business of imestrnent in bonds and shares as well 35 importing and selling consumer
products. African & Esstern (Bahrain) W.LL. is 3 private entity that is not [isted on any public exchange. The Company’s inter-
est in African & Eastern (Eshrainy W.LL is accounted for using the eguity method in the financial statements.

The movements during the year are as follows:

2018 2015

BD BD

At 1 January 6,872,407 6,225,485

Share of profit during the year 2,113 407 1628772

Dwvidends received during the year (1,400,000)  {1.000,000)

Share in associate’s cumulative changes i fair values (14, 728) 15,150

At 31 December 7,371,085 6,672,407

The following table illustrates the summarized financial inforrnation of the Company’s investrment in African & Eastem (Bahrain)

W.LL.:

2016 2015

BD BD

Current assets 747,399 6,079,163

Mon-curent assets 16,244,154 14791 555

Current liabilides (1,623,2435) (835,311}

MNon-curent lisbdities (208, 7T83) (172,180}

Eaus 21,958,473 19,865,227

son of the C - hip 33.33% S3.33%

Share of the associate’s net assets 1,210, 02 6,620,414

Goodwill on investment 251,803 251,993

T 0BS

Carrying amount of the investment = b o

2016 2015

BD BD

Fevenus 18,904,246 14 510,532

Cost of sales (11,124,050)  (5,397.683)

Oxher income 620,963 374,092
Administrative egperses

Profit for the vear 6,340,221 4 BBE BOS

Comparny's share of profit for the year 2,113.407 1628772

As at 31 December 2016, the associate had contingent liabfities arising in the ordinary course of business which includes
cutstanding letter of guarantee and tender chegues amounting to B0 5,697 (2015: BD 5,486).
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9 AVAILABLE-FOR.SALE INVESTMENTS

2006 2015
BD BD

Equity investrments:
Quoted investments 4,546,336 2,684 415
Unguoted investments (3t costh * 310,800 310,800

4,857,136 2,995,215

* These unquoted investments are camed at cost, as fair values cannot be reliably determined due to the unpredictabls
nature of future cash flows and the lack of other suitable methods for amiving at & reliable fair value for thess investments.

The movernent in the guoted availabie-for-sale imestments is as follows:

2018 2015

BD BDO

At 1 January 2,684,415 2,370,630
Additions during the year® 2,000,000 =
Unrealised gain on available for ssle investments {138,075) 313,785
At 31 December 4,546,336 2,684,415

All available-for-sale imestments valued at fair valus were valued under level 1 fair value hierarchy, there were no available-
for-sale imestments which wene fair valued under leva! 2 and level 3 fair value hierarchy (note 315,

** The additions during the year pertains to Govemnment Development bonds issued by the Central Bank of Bahrain on

behalf of the Govenment of Kingdom of Bahrain. The bonds canry interest at a fieed rate of 4.45% per annum and misture
an 21 July 2019,

10 INVENTDRIES 216 2015
BD BD

Food and beverages 63,280 56,635
General stores 17813 18422
81,203 75057

The amourt of Fventonies recognissd as expenditure 0 @ross operating costs durmg the year amounted to B0 779,322 (2015: BOD 904, 6596).

11 HELD.FOR.TRADING INVESTMENTS 2016 2015
BD BD

Quoted equities

At 1 January 42,831 49,127

Fair value loss [2,005) (6,196}

At 31 December 40,826 42931
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2016 2015

BD BD

Trade receivables ] G201
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables %‘Eﬂ %%I?DTEJ
372,025 482 052

Prepaid expenses 182,024 143 568
Hocrued interest 40,5393 -
Advances to suppler 3,003 *
Amaounts due from a related party (Note 28) = 13,293
Other receivables 1,406 8571
579,002 647 482

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing, Receivables relating to current gussts are payable on depariure. Receivables re-
lating to other operstions and corporste gussts are generally on 30 days terms. For terms and conditions relating to related
party receivables, refer to note 28,

A5 at 31 December 20016, trade recenables with a nominal value of BD 21,423 (2015: BD 38,072) were impaired. Mowe-
ments in the allowance for impairment of recevables were as follows:

2016 2015

BD BD

At 1 lanuary 38,072 94845
Prowision written back [16,640) (16.773)
&t 31 December 21,493 IBOT2

A5 gt 31 December, the ageing of unimpaired trade receivables is as follows:

Past due but not impaired

MNeither
past due 30 - 60
nior days 6B1-90 91 -120
Total impaired days days =120 days
GO BDO BD EC BDO B0
20148 3ra02s 220,318 110,337 9,087 8,302 28,000
2015 482,062 402,675 53.568 4541 10,965 0.9501

Unirnpaired receivahbles are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice of the
Compary to obtain collateral over receivables except post dated cheques for 3 small number of receivable balances.
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13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalents in the statement of cash flows consist of the followsng statement of financial positon amounts:

2008 2015

BD BD

Cash on hand i ot
Cash at banks 4,807,431 3,409.293
Term 2 - 2 835 345
Biank balances and cash 4,815,631 6,252,055
: SR (234,000) (211,543}
Cash and cash eguivalents as per the statement of cash flows 4,581,621 6,040,512

Restricted cash represent unclaimed dwidends which have been excluded in cash and cash eguvalents.

Termn deposits in 2015 are short tern deposits, denominated in Bahraind Dinars and hald with commencial banks in the King-
dom of Bahrain with an average effective interest rate of 0.95%. These term deposits have originagl matunites of one month
and was mot rolled over in 2016,

14 SHARE CAPITAL

2016 2045
BD BD

Authorised: - 3

150,000,000 (2015: 150,000,000) ordinary shares of BD 0.100 each 15,000,000 15 000,000

Issued and fully paed:

110,250,000 (2015: 110,250,000) shares of B0 0100 each 11,025,000 11,025,000

15 TREASURY SHARES

Treasury shares represent the purchass by the Company of its own shares. 4s at 31 December 2016, the Company had pur-
chased 1. 075,257 chares (2015: 1,075,257 chares) with a market value of B0 301,072 (2015: BD 301,072). These shares
represents 0.96% of the total cutstanding shares as at 31 Decembser 2016 and 31 Decamber 2015,

ic. STATUTORY RESERVE

As reguired by the Bahmin Commersial Companies Law and the Company’s articles of associgtion, 10% of the profit for the
year has to be transferred to statutony resere. The Company may resofes to discontinues such annual transfers when the resene
totals 50% of the issued share capital. The resene is not distributabds sxcept i such circumstances a5 stipulated in the Bah-
rain Commercial Companies Law. Mo such transfer was made during the year (2015: BD 262,500) as the statutory resene has
reached S0% of the issued and paid up share capital.

i7. GENERAL
The general reserve represents funds st aside for the purpose of future capital expenditure and to enhance the capital base of
the Company. There are no restrictions ower the distribution of this resene.

18. REVALUATION RESERVE
The revaluation resense relates to the fair valuation of freehold land owned by the Cormpany.

The freehold land was revalued by professional valuers as of 31 December 2016. The reduction in fair value of BD 4,397,432
(2015: nd)} has been offset against the revaluation reserve (note 7).
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15 DIVIDENDS

a) and paid dividends
At annual general mesting of the shareholders held on 30 March 2016, the shareholders of the Company
resofved to distribute cash dividends of 12 fils per share, relating to 2015 amounting to B0 1,310,097 which was
paid on 7 April 2006 from retsined eamings (2015: 10 fils per share, relating to 2014 amounted to BD 1,055, 759).

The Board of Directors on 16 February 2017 has pro d a eash deddend of 12 fils per share totalling BD 1,310,097
from the retmined eamings (2015: cash dividend of 12 fils per share totalling BD 1,510,09T). These appropriations
are subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and other regulatory bodies.

b Proposed and issued bonus shares
The shareholders of the Cormpany did not resche to distribute any bonus shanes from the general resene during the
year (2015: & bonus shares for each 100 shares held tota®ing to 5,250,000 bonws shares with a nominal value of B0
525,000 persining to 2014).

The Board of Directors has not proposed bonus shares from the general reserve for the year 2006 (2015: same).
c) Cash dividend per share

Dividend per share is calculated by dviding the proposed dividend for the yvear by the number of elgible shares at the
year-end, as follows:

2008 2015
Dividend for the year in BD 1,310,087 1 310,097
Mumber of elighle shares as at 1 January 109174743 103,975,946
Bonus shares isswed during the year ¥ 5. 198,797
Mumber of elighle shares as at 31 December 108174,743 109,174,743
Dvidend per share—fils 19 12

20 EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS

Mowvernents in the Eability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of employees’ end of senice benefits

are as follows:
2006 2015
BD BD
Provision as at 1 January 362,320 330,110
Provided during the year (note 26) 78,360 B1.546
End of service benefits paid (23,304) [29.636)
Provision as at 31 December 415,376 362 320
21 TERM LOAN
2006 2015
BD BD
Current liabiliy 2,486,436 2,485 436
Mon-curment [ability 1243, 215 3729651
Total term loan 3. 720,851 B, TIE 08T
As &t 1 January 6,716,087 8,702,523
Repayment (2,486,436)  (2486,436)
s at 31 Decemnber 3,729,631 6,216,087

i
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Z1l TERM LOAN (coniinue)

The Company has obtained an overdraft facility of BD 15,000,000 from a commercial bank in Kingdom of Bahrain to
finance the construction of a commercial property which was sgreed with the commercial bank to comert the owerdraft
facility to & term loan upon the completion of the construction. On 14 April 2012, the construction of the commercisl
property was completed and the overdraft facility was comerted into 3 term loan, which is repaysbie in quartesdy instalments
of BD 621,609 plus interest at a rate of 3 month BIBOR plus 2.5% over a period of six years starting on 12 July 2012,
The effective interest rate at 31 December 2016 was 4.23% (31 Decemnber 2015: 3.61%). The term loan is secured by &
miortgage over the freehold land, buildings and improvements to buildings.

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2006 2015
BD BD
Accrued expenses 618,774 Braniz
Amounts dus o related parties (note 28) 207,987 403,098
Trade payables ro,0n2 144 330
Dividends payabis 234,000 211543
Advances from customers 182834 380815
Provision for defective items 113,213 106 201
Provision for chantabde contributions 81150 85150
Construction contractors payabls 2o, 782 20,244
Interest payakble 36,202 53 484
Defersd ncome ]ﬁ 2&533
Cther payables
Retenticns payable 2,380 81 577

1,912,080 2,071,047
Trade paysbles are nom-interest beaning and are nomally settled within 45 days from the date of receipt of the goods or
SEfvice.

Movements in the prosision for chantable contributions recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Eﬂg.l.; 2015

Provision a5 at 1 January 85,150 81,350

Amount provided during the year 20, CeCHD 50,000

Charntable contributions paid (24, 000) {56,200)

Provision as at 31 December 81.150 85150
23 GROSS OPERATING REVENUE

20016 015

BD BD

Riooms 2,840,200 3,284 243

Food and beverages 2,703,647 3,195 144

Sensced apartrments 1,734,053 15703859

Income from office towers 1,043,419 974,70

Other departments J64, 601 451 528
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24 GROSS OPERATING COSTS

2018 2015
el

Food and beverages
Room related expenses 276,088 644 026
Sendced apartments related expenses 462,726 434 511
Expenses related to office towers 275,485 253,210
Other operating departrments 2,188,711 2140051

An analysis of gross operating costs on the basis of nature of expenses is a5 follows:

20186 2015
1,954,42ﬂm 1526 BHEE
Payroll and related expenses (note 26) ;
Consumption of inwentones Tre.322 904 6896
{nerhead expenses 408 816 444 816
LHilities, inswrance and taxes 433217 42%%
Repairs and maintenance 182,210 y
Management fees [note 28) 206,401 301,413
Commission expenses 204,136 254,565
Sales and marketing 113,331 120,396
Others T3 E58 1959

2008 2015

BD 8D

Rental income 240,000 240,000
Rezidor sponsorship fee - 17,724
Other 4,854 34110

244,854 291 834
26 STAFF COSTS

The profit for the year is stated after charging staff costs as follows:

2006 2015

BD BD

Salaries and wages 1,397,805 1,378,353

Employess end of service benefits (note 201 T8,560 E1.846
Contributions to the Social Inswance Organisation scherne:

- Bahrainis 16,410 73,873

- Mon-Bahrainis 20,404 27,598

iOther staff expenses and benefits G667 862 685,037

2,247,841 2226, 707

The s@&ff costs has been allocated in the statement of income as follows: -'n."ﬂé-g 2015

8D

Gross operating costs (note 24) 1,854,420 1,926,924

iGeneral and administration expenses 283421 299,783

2,247,841 2,226,707
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27 BASIC AND DMLUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

26 2015
Prafit for the year - BD 3,212,833 3.773.223
Weighted average shares in issue [net of treasury shares) 108174, 743 109174 743
Basic and diuted eamings per share - fils 32 35

Mo separate figure for dduted eamings per share has besn presented a5 the Company has issued no instruments that would
have 3 diluthve effect.

Z8 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALAMNCES.

Related parties represent the associated company, major shareholders, directors and key managerment personnel of the
Company, the oparator of the hoted and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly mfluenced by such parties. Pricing
policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company's Board of Directors.

Transactions with related parties included in the staternent of profit or loss are as follows:

20146 2015
Rew-

Fees for enue Revenue
miaARage- and Fees for and
meedit Ottheer other mansgement Crher ather
Purchazes seryices expenses income Purchases SEMViCES  EXPEMNSES mcome
BD BD BD BD BD BDO B0 BO
Associated company 114,807 - - - 118609 - - SEO
m:;]m - 206401 30,510 7,807 . 301419 20159 29,663
Directors 107,054 17,253 - 202250 10,289

114,687 2064010 227584 25,2530 115609 301419 222409 2 40552
Balances with relsted partes mncluded in the statement of financial positon (note 12 and note 22) are as follows:

2016 2015
Receivables Payables Recewsbles Payables
BD BD BD BD
Associated company : 10,083 - logsze
pary me;je.;;] x 108874 13293 213570
Directors : 179,000 - 179.000

- 207967 13293 403.098
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Qutstanding balances at the year end arise in the nomnal course of business and are unsecured, interest free and settle-
renit cocurs in cash, and are ususlly settled within 30 days. Thers have been no guarantees received or provided for any
relsted party payable and receivable balances.

The directors’ rermuneration changed to statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2016 amoumted to

B0 179,000 (2015: BD 1759, 0000 which only includes the basic fees. Further, the directors’ remuneration paid during the
year amounted to BD 179,000 (2015: BD 172,000).
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

Compensation of key management personnel
The rermuneration of key management personnel, other than directors, dunng the year was as follows:

2016 2015

BD BD

Short-term benefits 170841 192 694
Employee's end of service banefits 22,361 14 466

183,202 207180

23 COMMITMENTS
The Board of Directors have authonised future capital expenditure amounting to B0 4.5 million as of 31 December 2016 per-
@ining to refurbishment of hotel ooms and lobby (2015 nid).

30 FINANCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES

Introduction
The Company manages nsk through a process of ongoing identification and monitoring of the risks it faces. The Company is
exposed o interest rate nisk, credit risk, liquidity risk, eguity price risk and reputstional nisk.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsibée for the overall risk management approsch and for approving the risk strategies and
principles.

Executive committes
The sxecutive committes s responsible for evaluating and approving business and nisk stratedies, plans and policies of the
Comparny.

Investment committee
The irvestment committes i mainly responsible for market and liquidity risks pertaining to the Company’s mvwestrnent activity
by optimising liquidsty and mazirmising returns from the funds available to the Company.

Imterest rate risk

As gt 31 December 2016, the Company has & term loan with a commercial bank in the Kingdom of Bahrain and has no term
depaosits_ The termn deposits and their effective interest rate at 31 December 2015 sre disclosed in note 13, The Company is
niot exposed to short term interest rate risk on the term deposits a5 they sre fived rate deposits.

The Company is exposed to interest rate nisk on its t2rm loan. The term loan and its effective interest rate at 31 Decembser 2016
are disclosed i onote 21, An increase in the interest rate on the cutstanding tesm loan by 100 basis points with all other vari-
ables held constant, would have decreased the profit for the year by BD 37,297 (2015: BD 62,151). A decrease i interest rate
by 100 basis points would have an egual and opposite effect on the profit for the year.

Credit risk
Credit risk i the nsk that one party to a financial instrurnent will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to
incur & financial loss.
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40 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES AND POLICIES [continmed)

Credit risk (continmed)

The Comparny is exposed to credit risk on its @ deposits, managed portfolio and trade and other receivables. The Company
places its deposits and funds with banks and imestment managsrss having good credit ratings.  With regard to trade and other
recaivables, the Company seeks to limit its credit risk with respect 1o customers by setting credit mits for individual custormers
and monitoring cutstanding receivables on an on-going basis.

The Company provides its senices to a large number of customers. s five largest custiomers account for 48% of outstanding
trade receivables at 31 December 2016 (2015: 205:).

Credit nsk is limited to the camying value of financial assete as shown in the staternent of financal position.

Liguidity risk
Liquidety risk (also referred to as funding nisk], is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitrnents associated with financial instrurments.

The Company limits its liquidsty risk by ensurng bank facilites are availabée and monitoring cash flows on an on-going basis.
The Company's terms of billng require amounts to be paid within 30 days of billing. Trade payables are normally settled within
45 days from the date of invoice. The Comparny’s cash flows from operations are nomally adeguate to meet expected liguidity
requirements.

The t@kble below summarises the matrites of the Company’s undiscounted financial liabilites at 31 December, based on
contractual payment dates.

Leszs than Jtol2 1ta 5 Total
3 months mionthe years BD
BD BD BD
31 December 2006
Dividends payable 234,010 + . 234,010
Retentions payable 2300 - - 2,390
Interest payables 36,202 - - 306,202
Construction contractors payable = 30,762 - 38,762
Cther payables = 8,318 - 6,316
Trade payables - 278,902 - 278,802
Amounts due to related parties (note 28) + 297,967 + 297,067
Term loan 657,041 1035600 1260831 3,853,862
Total 820,733 2,558,727 1. 260,831 4,730,391
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk [contimaed)
Less than G012 w5 TomEl
3 maonths miarths yEars |0
BOv BD BD
31 Decernber 2015
Deadends payable 211,543 - - 211543
Retentions payable B1L57T - = BL57TT
Interest payshles 53,484 - - 53,484
Construction contractors payable - 20,244 = 20,244
Other payables - 6,194 = 6,194
Trade payables - 143 330 - 1413 530
Amounts due to related parties [note 28] - 403,058 = 403,098
Temm loan &80, 662 2,006,554 3,853,662 6,540,867
Taital 1,027,266 2577 220 3,853,662 7,458 548
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of & financial instrument will flucteate dus to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company's transactions are mainly in Bahraini Dinars and United Stated Dollars. The Comgany is not exposed to significant
currency risk as the Bahraini Dinar is pegged to the United States Daollar.

Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changss im marlet prices, whether

those changes are caused by factors specific to the individwsl instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all instruments traded
in the market.

The Company controls equity prce risk by dhversifying its imeestrments.

The Company makes imwestments on its own account and through portfolic managers.

Al of the Company’s guoted  Inwvestrments, including mansged portfolio investments, are traded in Gulf Co-operation Council
{GCC) markets. One of the Company's own managed investments accounts for 93% of the total investments a5 of 31 December
2016 (2015: 58%). Mo other investrnents, including imvestrments in the managed portfolio, accounts for more than 10% of
the total imestmernts.

The following tsbie demonstrates the sensitivity of the cumulative changes in fair value to reasonably possible changes in equity
prices, with all other vanables held constant.

E'“Eq#_“'; Effecton  Effecton  Changein Effecton  Effecton
price equity profit  equity price equity profit
i 2016 2016 2015 2015 2015
s BD BD BD BD BD
Avadable-for-sale investments
Quoted +20% 909267 i +20% 536,883 -
200  (908.267) 2 -20% {536,883} -
Held-for-trading +20% Z 8,185 +20% - 5,566

Quoted -20% 2 (8.183) -20% - (B.,566)
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES [continued)

Equity price risk {continued)

The Company also has unguoted investrments carried at cost where the impact of changes in equity prices will only be refiected
when the imestment is sodd or deemed to be Impaired, then the statement of profit or loss will be impacted.

Reputational risk
The Company mansges reputstional risk through regular monitoring of operations, ensuring that customess’ feedback on the
products and semices offered is regulary received and acted wpom, mystery guest processes and other forms of customer
satisfaction surveys.

Capital managemeant
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, equity incledes share capital, treasury shares, statutony resemve, general
reserve, revalustion reserve, available-for-sale imestments reserve, retained eamings and proposed dividends.

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management strategy is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in
order to suppart its business and I'I'LE::I'!}II'HSE shareholders value and run its operations with funds generated from operations and
raintain & ko level of bomowings.

In order to achieve this overall chjective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
meets financial covenants attached to the imt—beaiﬁéuarﬁ and bormowi that define capital structure requirernents.
Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would pemmit the bank to immediately call loans and Efrcnmgﬁ There have been
nig breaches in the financial covenants of any intersi-beanng term loan in the current penod.

The Compary sets the amount of capital in proportion to sk, The Company manages the capital structure and malkes adpustments
to it im the light of changes in economic conditions. and the risk characteristics of the mE assets. In arder to maintain or
adjust the capitsl structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders.

N changes were made in the objectives, polickes or processes during the years ended 31 Decemnber 2016 and 31 December
2015,

The Compary monitors capital using a geaning ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s
policy is to keep the geanng ratio below 25%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and bomrowing,
trade and others payables, less cash and cash eguialents.

2016 2015

BD BO

Interest-bearing term loan (note 1) 3,729,651 E.216,087
Trade and other payables (note 22) 1,612,080 2,071,047
Cash and cash equivaients (note 13) (4,381,621) (6.040.512)
Net debt 1,060,120 2,245,622
Total capital 82,706,352 85,053,756
Capital and net debt 23,766,472 §7.300,378
Gearing ratio 1% %
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41 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial instruments comgrises of financial assets and financial liabilites.

Financial assets consist of cash at banks, term deposits, & certsin portion of trade and other receivables and imestments.
Financial liabilities consist of a certain portion of trade and other payables and term loan.

%tﬂbb provides 1he fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilites as at 31 December
E'Dl.E and Decamber 2015

Fair value measurement using

prices in Significant Significant
active obsemnvable wnobservable

markets inputs inputs
Date of (Level 1) (Level 2} {Level 3) Total
31 December 2016 valuation BD BD BD BD
Assets measured at fair value:
Auadzble-for-sale investments 2 Decermber 2016 4,545,336 - - 4,545.336
Held-for-trading investments 31 Decerber 16 40,926 - - 40,926
Revalued freshold land 1 December A6 - - 31,774,218 31,774,218
Fair walue rmegsuremert using
Quoted
Rrices in Significant Significart
active chservable unobservable
rmarkets inputs inputs
Diate of {Level 1) {Level 2) [Lewel 3] Total
31 December 2015 valugtion ED ED ED BD
bzsets messured st fair value:
Avalable-for-sale investments 31 December 2015 2,684,415 : - 2684415
Held-for-trading investments 31 Decembear 2015 42931 - = 42931
Revalued freshold land 31 December 2013 - - as1ri 650 36171650

Craring the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 Decemnber 2015, there have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2
and Lewved 3.

The movernent in the revalued freehold lnd amounting to B0 6,753,995 (2015: nil) which is under Level 3 fair value hierarchy
represents revalustion bose during the year (2015: nil).

The management assessed that cash and bank balances, deposits, trade and receivables, current portion of term boan and
trade and other payables approcimate their carnying amounts largely dus to the short-term maturities of these instnements.
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32 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s operating businesses are organised into the following segments:

Hiotel business and corporate - Room rental, food and beverage sales, conference and events, and head office axpenses.
Office Towers - Office rental from two commenzial towers.
Inwvestmeants - Income from investments including associate, held-for-trading investments,

awvailable-for-sale imestments and term deposits.

Managernent monitors the operating results of the operating segmenis separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Sagment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss.

Segment assets include = operating assets used by a segment and consist pamarily of property, plant and equiprment,
invertones, available-for-sale imestments, held-for-trading investrnents and accounts recetvable. Whilst the majority of the
ass=ts can be direcily attributed o mdwidual business segments, the camng amounts of certain assets used jointly by two
segments is allocated to segments on a reasonabde basis.

Segrpent lighilities mclude all operating liabilities and consist primarly of accounts payable, accrued lisbiites and temn baan.

Hiobe! bupsinees and comporate (iffice fowers Invegtments Total
2018 2015 2016 15 2018 205 20018 2015
BO BD BD BD BD BD ED O
Gross operating revenue  TTB2581  goi2204 1043430 974,710 = - BADBNID 9 8E5914
iaross oparating costs (4714137} (4350173 (275485  (253,210) = - [A989587] (5,203 337
aross operating profit 3046489 3052082 TET.954 T 500 5 - 3FB423 4683532
Investment income (net) = - 7 - 2360763  1p06206 2 2380.TE3 1303305
iJther income 244859 91,534 i - > - 204,654 201 234
Depreciation (1183, 233) (11363556 (880, 771)  (B48,335) - - (2033,984) (1,534,525
Expenses (B43.733) (558256 - = ' - (843733 (658,256
Em'm% (504} [5o1) (204381 265,185 - - [204990§ 255 E7E)

o Propeny, (36,390) 1764

wite-off - = - - (8. 350§ 104, X94
plant and equipment o ! { ]
Profit (lass) for the year 14459378 23557087 (297.208)  (s9z070) 2360783 1506206 3512933 3773213
Taotal assets 4408974 50297 B55  2TMEOTIT  2y242 757 ITIBATTE 16 15760 BATEIA6D o3 703,210
Taotal E=hilites 2081467 zio47ar 3995650 £ 524667 - - BOSTIIT 3549454
Capital expanditura 458,149 176,635 - £3,252 % 458,149 239 887

All of the sabes and profit from the hoted business and office towers are eamed in the Kingdomn of Bahrain and investrment income
is. eamead from GCOC counfries inchuding the Kingdomn of Bahraan,
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# SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION
a) The names and nationalities of the major shareholders, holding more than 5% of issued share capital of the

Company and the number of shares held by them are as follows:

2016 2015
Names Mationality No. of shares % No. of shares %
Fueait Irmestment Authority Fuwaii 36,207,168 32.89% 36,207,166 J2.84%
Social Insurance Organization o
(Pension) - Civil Bahreini 35,138,566 31.8T% 35,138,566 J187%
Fureait Irmvestment Company Fuwaii 22,539,449 20.449% 23,090,302 20.594%
k) Distribution of share capital is as follows:
Percentage of
Category No. of total
Mo, of shares
shareholder(s) oatstanding
As of 31 December 200.6: Share Capfial
Less than 1% 7,549,894 4,009 B.B5%
1% up to less than 5% 7,739,666 4 T.0F%
B2 wp to less than 10% - - 0.
10% up o less than 20 % - - 0.
20% up o less than 50% 93,885,183 3 B5.16%
109,174,743 4,016 99.03%
Treasury shares 1,075,257 - 0.98%
130,250,000 4,016 10
Ag of 31 December 2015
Less than 1% 7021534 4,032 B.3TH
1% wp to less than 5% 7,716,773 4 7.00%
5% up to less than 10% - - C.00Rs
10% up o less than 20 % - - D.00%
207 up o less than 505 294.436.036 3 Bh.65%
109,174,743 4,039 S5 02%
Treasury sharnes 1075257 - 0.98%
110, 250,000 4,039 10C%
Drectors ownershlp Interest

Mir. Faisal Ahmed Al Zsyani (Chairmam of the Company) holds 217,775 (31 Decamber 2015; 194,882 shares in the Company
as gt 31 December 2016 representing 0_.20% (31 December 2015: 0.15%) holding in the Cornpany.
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24 CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE DISCLOSURES

{l} Board, Board Members and Management
Board and Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board of Directors is accountable to shareholders for the proper and prudent investment and  preservation of
sharehalder Interests. The Board roles and responsibilites includs but not Emnited to:

-  Responsible for establishing the Company’s policies and strategy and for regularty monitoring the effectiveness of
executive managemsant in carmying out those policies and strategy.

- Emswre that the Company is managed prudently in complianpe with its Memorandum and Articles of

- Approving budgets, financial staterments, major finance decision, strategic investment decision making, acguisitions
and major asset disposal decisions.

In this respect, the Directors remain individually and collectively responside for pedforming all Board of Director's tasks.

Material transactions requiring board approval
The inlimn‘lg rmaterial ransactions reguire boand review, evaluation and approval:
Long termn strategic plan
- Anmual business plan
- Business continuity plan
- Paolicies of the Company
- Risk management framework
- Appointment of sub-committes members

Election system of directors and termination process
Appoimtment / re-appointment of Board mermbers take place every three years at the meeting of the Sharehaolders.

Termnination of & Board member's mandate usually occurs by dismissal at the Mesting of the Shareholder or by the
rmember’s resignation from the Board of Directors.

Directors trading of company shares
The Directors did not trade in any shares during the vears ended 31 Decernber 2016 and 31 December 2015,

CGode of conduct and procedures adopted by the Boand for monitoring compliance

The Bosrd and the Company’s employees are expected to maintain the hi lewvel of corporate ethics and personal behaviour.
The Company has d & Code of Conduct which provides an ethical and legal framework for all employees in the conduwet
of its business. The Code of Conduct defines how the Company relates to its employess, shareholders and the community in
which the Company operates.

The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Conduct and whistleblower procedures policy to monitor and ensures
compliance with Compsany ethics.

The Code of Conduct provides clear directions on conducting business internationally, interscting with governmeants, communities,
business partners and general workplace behaviour having regard to the best practice corporate govemance models. The Code
of Conduct sets out & behavioural framework for sl employees in the context of 3 wide range of ethical and legal isswes. The
Code of Conduct will be published in the 'Corporste Governance” section of the Company’s website.
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34 CORPORATE GOVERMAMNCE DISCLOSURES |continued)

(I} Board, Board Members and Management (contimwed]

The Board of Directors consist of 7 members as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2015,
The Board has been elected on 29 March 2015 for a perod of 3 years.

The following table summarises the information abouwt the profession and business titke of the cument Board members:

Executive,” non executive
Name of Board Member Protession Business Title  independent/ non independent
1 Mr. Faisal Bhmed Al Zaysni  Businessman Chairman Mon Exscutive | Independent
M. fyad Abdullz Ahmed & Representing Huwait Investment Vice Chaimman and . -

2 ey Com Manasing i Executive / Non- independent

3 ;;E‘n‘hdi R e Director Non Executive | Non- independent
4 Mr. Mishari Zaid Al Khalid  Semeocr0nE FUAEILIMESITEN  pirecrgr Mon Exscutive / Mon- independent
S Mr. Abdulaziz Abdulla Alisa “ﬂEP'EE:.E:.‘L’:FW insurance Director Mon Exscutive / Mon- independent
6 MrHashem SALSaif ~ pobroscrNEFUMBIIMESIENt  pireeny Mon Executive { Non- independent
7 MrSulsimanGhicom  pebostNEFUMBILINESITEN  pirecrnr Mon Executive { Non- independent

Mo board member had directorship of other boards during the year endad 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,

The Compamny should hold a minimuwm of four Board meetings during each year. During the year ended 31 December
2046, five Board meetngs were held. The following table susnmanses the information abowt Board of Directors meeting
dates and attendance of directors at each meeting;

Members 11-Feb-16  14-Ape-18 | 21-lul-16 20-0ct-16 | 15Dec-16
Mr. Faisal Ahmed Al Zayani v ¥ k.t + v
Br. Abdul Latif Ahmed Al Zayani < ¥ ¥ + ¥
Mr. Mishar Zaid Al Khalid < v v + v
Mr. Ayad Abdulia Ahmed Al Sumait ¥ ' ¥ v ¥

| Mr.Hashem 5_Al Saif v - v v « x
Mr.Sulaiman Ghloorm Abdullah v v ¥ v v
Mr. Abdulaziz Abdulla Alisa v ¥ ¥ + ¥

" - » =
- e P i w MR- )
k]

--.

il = - e
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44 CORPORATE GOVERMANCE DISCLOSURES (contimued)
{1} Board, Board Members and Management (contlnaed)

Remuneration policy
The rermuneraticn policy & based on attendance fees and basic fees.
The remuneration of individual members is gven in the below @bl

Members Meetings attended  Fee / meeting  AHendance fee Basic fees Total fee
2016 2016 2016 2016

BD BD BD BD

Mr. Faisal Ahmed Al Zayani 4 750 3.000 27,000 30,000
Mr. Abdul Latif Ahrmed Al Zayani 5 750 3.750 25,000 28,750
Mr. Mishan Zaid Al Khalid 5 750 3,750 25,000 28,750
Mr. Ayad Abdulla Ahmed Al Sumait 5 750 3,750 27.000 30,750
Mr. Hashem S_Al Saif 4 750 3.000 25,000 28,000
Mr.Sulaiman Ghlocom Abdullsh 5 750 3,750 25,000 28,7
Mr. Abdulaziz Abdulls Alisa 5 750 3.750 25,000 28,750

24,750 179,000 203,750

Members Mestings attended  Fee/ mesting  Attendance fes Basic fees Totsl fes
2015 2015 2015 2015

BD BD BD ED

Mr. Faisal Ahmed Al Zayani 4 750 3,000 27,000 30,000
Mr. Abdul Latif Ahmed Al Zayani & 750 4,500 25,000 29,500
Mr. Mishari Zaid Al Khalid 5 750 4 500 25,000 29,500
Mr. fyad Abdulla Ahmed Al Sumait G 750 4500 27,000 31 500
Mr. Hashem 5.4l Saif 4 750 3,000 25,000 28,000
Mr.Sulaiman Ghloom Abdullah B 750 4,500 25,000 29,500
Mr. Abdulaziz Abdulla Alisa 5 750 4,500 25,000 29,500

28,500 179,000 207,500
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44 CORPORATE GOVERMAMCE DISCLOSURES (comtinued)
(I} Board, Board Members and Management (continued)
The following table summarises the information about the profession, business title and experience in years of each of

the Executive Management;
I?n:pu'ium
if years
Hame of Executive Member Designation Department
1 Mr. Abdul Rahman A Morshed Chief Executive Officer Administration 35
2 ¥r. Panos Panagis General Manager Administration 17
3 Mr. Ramesh Shankar Group Chief Sccourtant Finance i7
4 Mr. Darryl Vesrasary * Finanzial Controfer Finance 158
5 Blr. Safim Thakkur Director of Enginesning Engineering 22
= Br. Burak Olcan Director of Sales and Marketing  Sales 15
T Mr. Salman Hubsil Security Manager Securnity 3
g Mr. K.P. Chandran Executive-House Keeping House Keeping 13
9 Mr. Mohamed &l Shaikha Front Office Manager Administration 10
10 Mr.Peter Dubsky Director, Food & Beversge Food & Beversge a
11 Ms.Jocelyn Ellana HR Manzges Human Resources 15
11 BAr. Vito Fomelli Ewecutive Chef Food & Beversge T
12 Ms. Farin Hengstler Revenue Manager Administration &
* Mr Darny Viesrasamy keft the Company in Movember 20016,
The following table summarises the remuneration paid to the exscutive management
2016 2015
ED BD
Salaries and wages 328,803 327273
Employess’ end of senvice benefits 38,789 25,836
Bonuses 15,432 73,076
Tatal 443,126 424185
() Committees
The followsng table summarises the information about the Board Committees, their members and objectives;
: Execadi
Soard Commit- objective Mermbers won et _
independent; non independent

Ewecutive Com-  The Ewmcutive Committee’s overall primarily M Abdud Latif Ahmed Mon-executive |
mittee responsibility is to perform functions of the Al Zayani Mon-independent
Board of Directors when there is a critical need
e R L I Mr. Aysd Abdulla Executive /

for prompt review and action of the Board of  Ahmed Al Sumait
Cirectors and it is not practical 9o amange for

a meeting within the tsme reasonably available. Mr. Sulaiman Chloom Mon-executive [
In addition, the Executive Committee will assist  Akdullsh Mon-independent
the Board of Directors in maintaining owersight

of the Company's operstions, finance,

imwestrents and sk management matters.
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24 CORPORATE GOVERMANCE DISCLOSURES |contlnmed)
(I} Committees (continwed)

Audit Committee The role of the Audit Cormnmittes is to advise  Mr. Mishar Zaid Al Mon-executive | Mon-
on the establishment and maintenance  Khalid independent
of o fmewek of Jremal cemol S0 s Al Non-sxecutive | Non-
appropriate  ethical standards for the Py independent

rmanagement of the Company. The Audit

Committes has the authority to conduct or  Mr. Hashemn 5.A1 Saif Mon-sxecutive | Mon-
direct any investigation required to fulfil its independernt
responsibilities and has the ahility to retain,

gt the Compamy's expense, such legal,

accounting or other advisers, consultants or

experts as it considers necessary from time

to time in the performance of its duties.

The Company should hold a minirmum of two Executive and Audit committee meestings during each yesr. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, five Executive and five Audit commitiee meetings were held. The following table summarises the
informiation about committee meeting dates and attendance of directors at each meeting:

Executive Commities

Members 10-Feb-16 13-Apr-16 20-Jul-16 19-0ct-16 14-Dec-16

Mr. Abdul Latf Ahmed Al Zayani ¥ ¥ | ¥ v ¥ |
Mr. &yzd Abdulla Ahmed Al Sumait v v v ¥ v

Mr. Sulaiman Ghicom Abdullah ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ v

Audit Committes

Members 10-Feb-16 13-Apr-16 20-Iul-16 19-0ct-16 13-Dec-16

Mr. Mishari Zzid &1 Bhalid el ¥ ¥ v "

hr. Abdulaziz Abdulla Aliss " v | v ¥ v |
Mr. Hashem 5.41 Saif " + v v -

The following table summarises the remunerstion for each commities member:

Member Remumeration
pel1 i ] 2015
BD GO
Mr. Abdul Latif Ahmed Al Zayani 3,750 3,000
Mr. Ayad Abdulla Ahmed Al Sumait 3,730 3,000
Mr. Hashem S_Al Saif 3,000 2.250
Mr. Mishari Zaid Al Khalid 3,730 3,000
Mr. Sulaiman Ghloom Abdulish 3,730 3.000
Mr. Abdulaziz Abdulia Alisa 3,730 3.000

71,750 17,250
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3 CORPORATE GOVERMANCE DISCLOSURES (continued)
(il Corporate Governance

Changes to the Company’s corporate governance code and guidelines
In 2016, the Company has revisited its corporate governance framework and guidelnes o ensure compliance with the Conporate
Governance code enacted im 2010,

Conflict of interest:

In 2016, no mstances of conflicts of interest have arisen. In the instance of 3 conflict of ntersst ansing as a mesult of any
business transaction or any type of resclution to be tsken, the concerned Board member shall refrain from participating at the
discussion of such fransaction or resolution 1o be tsken. In this respect, the Company’s Board members usually inform the
Board of a potential confet of interest prior to the discussion of any transaction or resclution. The concemed Board member(s)
also refrain from woting in any instance where a confiict of interest shall arise.

Evaluation of Board performance
The Annual General Meeting of the Sharehelders evaluates on an annual basis the Board of Deectors” Performance and
absoves it from liabilities.

Chaimman and GCEQ performance
The Chairman and CED Performance are evaluated by the Board of Deectors on an annual basss.

Means of communication with shareholders and investors
The Company is committed to providing relevant and timely information to its shareholders in accordance with its continuous
disclosure obfigations under the Corporate Governance Code.

Information is communicated to sharshodders through the distribution of the Company's Annual Report and other communécations.
Al redeases are posted an the Company™s wehsite and releasad to the shareholders in a timely manner.

The Company Secretary is responsible for communications with the Shareholders and ensuring that the Company meets its
continuous disclosure obligations.

Management of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Compamy.
The management of principal Asks and uncertsinties faced by the Company is managed by the Executive Committes and the
Board of Directors.

Review of intemal control processes and procedures
The review of intemal control process and procedures is perforrmed regulady by the Company’s  internal suditors. which is
outscurced, to ensure efficiency.

35 SOCIAL RESFONSIBILITY
The Company discharges its social responsibities throwgh conporate donations and sponsarships on projects and organisations
aiming at social sustainakble development and relief.

@6 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
Certzin of the prior year figures have been reclassified to conform to the current yesr presentation. Such reclassifications do not
affect previously reporied retained esmangs or sharehaolders’ equity.

ik
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